
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, June 10, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain
bylaws which, if adopted, shall amend Kelowna 2030 -
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property
is affected by the proposed bylaws shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws
that are the subject of this hearing.  This Hearing is open to
the public and all representations to Council form part of
the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and
recorded by Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports
that have been received concerning the subject bylaws
have been made ava i lab le  to  the  pub l i c .The
correspondence and petitions received after May 27, 2014
(date of notification) are available for inspection during the
course of this hearing and are located on the information
table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled
to take place during the Regular Council meeting after the
conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted, however,
that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached tonight.

1



(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive
any representation from the applicant or members of the
public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the
Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10964 (OCP13-0011) and Bylaw No.
10965 (Z13-0016) - 984 Dehart Road, Sherwood
Mission Developments Ltd.

4 - 68

To amend the Offcial Community Plan in order to
change portions of the Future Land Use Desigation
of the subject property from the Multi-Unit
Residential Low Density designation to the
Single/Two Unit Residential designation and from
the Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the
Multi-Unit Residential Low Density designation and
to rezone a portion of the subject property from
the A1 - Agricultue 1 zone to the RU1 - Large Lot
Housing zone in order to to facilitate a future 55
lot residential subdivision.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10968 (OCP14-0006) and Bylaw
No. 10969 (Z14-0008) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue,
0781540 BC Ltd.

69 - 95

To amend the Official Community Plan in order
to change the future land use designation of the
subject properties from the Multiple Unit
Residential (Medium Density) designation to the
Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) designation
and to rezone the subject properties from the RU6
- Two Dwelling Housing zone to the C4 - Urban
Centre Comercial zone to facilitate the
development of a 3-storey mixed-use
development.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff
(Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate

2



all information, correspondence, petitions or reports
received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation
to Council regarding the project and is encouraged to
limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the
public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been
provided for any person(s) wishing to make
representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the
podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks
to 5 minutes, however, if they have additional
information they may address Council again after all
other members of the public have been heard a first
time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to
comment, the applicant is given an opportunity to
respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is
requested to keep the response to a total of 10 minutes
maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be
asked before the Public Hearing is closed and not during
debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). 
Unless Council directs that the Public Hearing on the
bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to
the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use
visual aids (e.g. photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.)
to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are
available.  Please ask staff for assistance prior to your
item if required.

3



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/28/2014 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: 
OCP13-0011 
Z13-0016 

Owners:   
Sherwood Mission Developments  
Dr. A. Rezansoff 

Address: 984 Dehart Road Applicant: New Town Planning Services Inc. 

Subject: Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment and Rezoning Application 

Existing OCP Designation: 
Single / Two Unit Residential (S2RES) / Multi-Unit Residential  
Low Density (MRL) 
 

Proposed OCP Designation: 
Single / Two Unit Residential (S2RES) / Multi-Unit Residential 
Low Density (MRL) 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0011 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing  a portion of the Future 
Land Use designation of Lot 1, Section 31, TWP 29, ODYD Plan KAP62654, located at 984 Dehart 
Road, Kelowna, BC, from the Multi-Unit Residential Low Density (MRL) designation to the 
Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) designation, and a portion of Single/Two Unit Residential 
(S2RES) be changed to Multi-Unit Residential Low Density (MRL), in accordance with ‘Map A’, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0016 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of part of Lot 1, Section 31, TWP 29, ODYD Plan 
KAP62654, located at 984 Dehart Road, Kelowna, BC, from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the RU1 
– Large Lot Housing zone, in accordance with ‘Map B’ be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw and Zone Amending Bylaw be 
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the zone amending bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of Development Engineering Branch and Parks Services, being completed to their 

4



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 2 

 
 

satisfaction, as well as a Farm Protection Development Permit, and a Natural Environment 
Development Permit.  

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is proposing to rezone a portion of the land from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the 
RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to facilitate a future 55 lot residential subdivision. The proposal 
requires an OCP amendment to extend the Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) future land use 
designation north into the area designated for Multi-Unit Residential, Low Density (MRL), in 
exchange for area that was previously Single/Two Unit Residential for Multi-Unit Residential, Low 
Density (MRL). 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services  

The property at 984 Dehart was removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) in 1989 and 
since the mid-1990s has been subject to significant infilling and watercourse disruption and 
relocation. In 1998, a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant was placed on the property requiring 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and drainage investigation and plans prior to development. Fill has 
been placed over peat, making the current soil conditions unsuitable and/or uncertain for road 
and foundation construction. Geotechnical concerns involve the presence of undetermined fill 
over topsoil and peat in some locations, and the uncertainty of the structure of the fill.  
Hydrogeological concerns involve the presence and reconfiguration of springs and watercourses 
on the property.  The covenant outlines investigation and plans required to address these 
concerns prior to development. 

Between 2008 and 2012, nine bylaw investigations occurred on the property, including stop work 
orders for unauthorized earth moving, and unsightly premises.  A Settlement and Release 
Agreement was signed by the owner and the City of Kelowna (the City) in 2010, whereby the City 
of Kelowna agreed not to enforce the bylaw dispute with the understanding that the owner would 
undertake actions, including riparian and watercourse protection and restoration, and adherence 
to City bylaws. 

The current application was initiated in the spring of 2013. This proposal was for rezoning to RU-
1 Large Lot Residential included a road access that came through Young and Turner Roads.  A 
Public Information Meeting was held on April18, 2013, with most of the residents opposed to this 
access.  Based on this public feedback, an alternate plan was developed, with the primary access 
at Dehart Road.  This is the road layout for the current configuration.  A Traffic Impact Analysis 
was prepared for this revised road network, which was received by the City in February, 2014.   

Staff supports the application subject to the following conditions being fulfilled prior to 4th 
Reading, including requirements of the: 

 Development Engineering Branch (see attached memo),  

 Parks Services, including a blanket Statutory Right of Way over the property, to facilitate 
a trail network to be established at the time of subdivision; 

 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services, including the requirements of the 
Covenant #KM084923 (see summary below and attached covenant); 

 Farm Protection Development Permit; 

5



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 3 

 
 

 Natural Environment Development Permit, including a mitigation/restoration plan (signed 
off by an QEP/RPBio) for the site, as required by the Settlement and Release Agreement1 
(attached); and a 

 The registration of a Build/No Disturb Covenant of 20 m along the northeast property line 
and a 15 m No Build / No Disturb Covenant along the west property line. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The proposal is to amend the OCP and rezone the property to accommodate a future 55 unit RU1 
– Large Lot Residential subdivision on the southern and central portion of 984 Dehart Road. The 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment is required to facilitate an extension of the Single / 
Two Unit Residential future land use designation slightly to the north, replacing 9,610 m2  of 
Multi-Unit Residential, Low Density (MRL), and changing 6,550 m2 of Single / Two Unit Residential 
to Multi-Unit Residential, Low Density (MRL). This represents a net increase of 3,060 m2 of Single 
/ Two Unit Residential area than is currently designated in the OCP. 

The proposal includes two watercourses and associated riparian management areas (RMA) in the 
land use plan, including a 20 m wide RMA along the northeast boundary and a 15 m RMA along the 
west boundary.  The northeast RMA will also function as a farm protection buffer area. Adjacent 
water licenses with respect to flow and location must be accommodated within the plan.  A 
memorandum of understanding with their neighbour regarding Ahern and Cowan Spring has been 
agreed upon. 

4.2 Background  

As discussed, much of the site has been modified over the last 20 years through grading and 
infilling.  The filling and watercourse modifications, as well as bylaw infractions of moving soil 
and watercourses without permits, have resulted in a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant being 
registered on the title of the property and the City of Kelowna Settlement and Release 
Agreement – 2010.  Details of these are included below. 

Section 219 Restrictive Covenant #KM084923 

The owner entered into a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant with the City of Kelowna in 19982 that 
stipulated that no further development occur until certain conditions were provided, including: 

 Sanitary sewer and a community water provided with fire protection capability; 

 A complete geotechnical report, to address the fill material and remedial actions required 
to make the property suitable for development, as well as address the surface and 
groundwater characteristics and a drainage plan, including any items that should be 
included in a restrictive covenant  which would safeguard building sites and utility 
installations; 

 Site grading and drainage plan completed to the satisfaction of the Development 
Engineer; 

 A suitable landscape buffer complete with fencing is established along the border of the 
ALR and non-ALR lands to the southeast and to the north and to the satisfaction of the 
Approving Officer; 

                                                
1
 Rezansoff, A.A. & the City of Kelowna, 2010. Settlement and Release Agreement. 

2
 BC Agent – Kamloops Registry Service Ltd, Aug. 28, 1998. Land Title Act Form C No 1044 – KM084923 – Covenant. 

6



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 4 

 
 

 A prepared geotechnical report prepared by Golder & Associates3; and 

 A complete inventory of springs, drainage channels and water licenses be identified, 
complete with a hydrogeotechnical study proposing how water will be handled through 
culverts and drainage channels. 

 
City of Kelowna Settlement and Release Agreement - 2010 

In 2010, a Settlement and Release Agreement (attached) was signed by the owner and the City of 
Kelowna, stipulating that the owner undertake the following: 

 Ensure that there is no net loss of riparian habitat and function for the Lands; 

 To remove all of the drain piping located on the Lands as identified on the photograph of 
the Lands attached hereto as Schedule “A”; 

 Prepare a mitigation/restoration plan (signed off by an QEP/RPBio) for the site; 

 Ensure that all future works on the site will adhere to applicable provincial acts, including 
but not limited to: the BC Water Act and the BC Fish Protection Act; and 

 Ensure that all future works on the site will adhere to applicable City of Kelowna policies, 
plans and policies including but not limited: Kelowna 2020 Official Community Plan 
(7600), Zoning Bylaw (8000) and Subdivision and Servicing Bylaw (7900). 

4.3 Site Context 

The 9.6 ha subject property is located within the Okanagan Mission Sector of the City (Map 1, 
below) and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The property is currently zoned A1 but is 
not in the Agricultural Land Reserve.  Properties within the Agricultural Land Reserve lie to the 
north and east (Map 2, below).  

The property has a number of water licenses in favour of downstream neighbours. The historical 
infilling resulted in changes in water flow. This resulted in issues with respect to water licenses.  
As part of this application package, a Memorandum of Understanding has been prepared to 
address water license and water flow issues. The neighbours have agreed to cooperate in the 
construction of a proposed conveyance route in order to ensure the water license rights are 
sustained in the future.   

The natural gas line Right of Way (ROW) runs diagonally through the site from the west of the site 
to the north. 

A number of watercourses are present on the site.  The project includes riparian areas and 
details on cross sections of each of these watercourses in the design4 and riparian planting is 
proposed as part of the environmental report, but a riparian restoration plan has not yet been 
provided5. 

4.4 Neighbourhood Context 

A single / two unit residential subdivision with RU1 zoning lies to the west of the property, and 
agricultural properties lie to the north and east.  Dehart Road borders the property to the south, 
and single unit and rural residential properties are south of Dehart Road. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

                                                
3
 Golder & Associates, 1996. Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Subdivision, Lot 2, Plan 35773, Sec. 31, TP.29, ODYD 

Dehart Road, Kelowna, British Columbia 
4
 Aplin & Martin, 2013. Civil Engineering Servicing Brief – Proposed Dehart Road Subdivision – 984 Dehart Rd, Kelowna, BC 

5
 Makonis, 2013.  Dehart Road Environmental Assessment – Submitted to New Town Planning Services Inc. 

7



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 5 

 
 

Orientation Zoning ALR Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Agriculture 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Agriculture 

South 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RR2 – Rural Residential 2 

No Single Family Residential 
Rural Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing No Single Family Residential 

 

The subject property is located within a Development Permit Area for Farm Protection given its 
proximity to ALR land. It is within a Natural Development Permit Area for high groundwater and 
surface water conditions. 

Map 1: Subject Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property 

Swamp Road 

Dehart Road 

Swamp Road 

8



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 6 

 
 

Map 2: Agricultural Land Reserve 

 
 
 
Map 3: Permanent Growth Boundary 

 
 
 

Subject Property 

ALR 

Subject Property 

Permanent Growth 
Boundary 

9



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 7 

 
 

Map 4: Current Future Land Use 

 

4.5 Traffic Impact Analysis 

Two traffic impact analysis (TIA) reports have been completed for the project.  The first Traffic 
Analysis Report6 was completed with the main access via Young and Turner Roads.  Torrs Road 
was available for emergency vehicles only, and there was no vehicular access from Dehart Road. 
This road network option was presented at a public information session held by the applicant in 
April 18, 2013.  It was met with significant concern from the residents of the Young / Turner 
Road neighbourhood.  In response, another road network configuration was developed using an 
intersection at Dehart Road and Bartholomew Court as the primary access.  A second TIA was 
completed in based on this new configuration.   

A second TIA, the Traffic Impact Assessment for the Proposed 984 Dehart Road Development7, 
and was completed in January, 2014.  This TIA is based on the current road and lot configuration, 
with the primary vehicular access on Dehart Road, and a secondary access from Turner Road. 

The TIA assessed two phases of the project.  The first phase is based on 55 single family units, 
based on the rezoning under application currently, and is estimated for completion in 2018.  The 
second phase includes a townhouse development of approximately 200 units at the north portion 
of the property.  This is not currently under application, but the use is accommodated in the 
current OCP and has been estimated for completion in 2030.   

The current road layout includes the primary access through an intersection on Dehart Road and 
Bartholomew Court, to the south of the project.  The results of the TIA indicate that the 55 unit 

                                                
6
 CTQ, March 2013. Traffic Analysis Report for 984 Dehart Road. 

7
 EYH Consultants Ltd., Jan. 31, 2014.  Traffic Impact Assessment for the Proposed 984 Dehart Road Development, Kelowna, BC.  A 

report prepared for New Town Architecture and Urban Planning. 

Resource 
Protection Area 

Multi-Unit 
Residential Low 

Density 

Single/Two Unit 
Residential 

Subject Property 

10



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 8 

 
 

single family development could be accommodated with this intersection.  Road A on the site 
could accommodate three lanes with STOP control, two outbound and one inbound.  A westbound 
right turn lane into the development from Dehart could be installed and should be included in the 
detailed design stage for the subdivision.8 The TIA indicates that painted left turn lanes at Dehart 
Road for access to the site should also be provided. Along the Young / Turner Roads, the TIA 
estimates that the 55 unit subdivision will generate an additional 4 vehicles in the morning and 6 
in the afternoon peak hours. 

The TIA found that, at the time of the addition of the 200 unit townhouse development, a traffic 
signal would be required at Dehart Road.  These results are based on the assumption that the 
townhouse traffic will use the Road A / Dehart intersection for primary access.  Under this 
assumption, the results estimate an additional 8 trips through the Young / Turner Road route in 
peak morning hours, and 10 trips along this route at peak afternoon hours.   

The OCP indicates that a sidewalk is required along Dehart between the project and Gordon 
Drive.  The City of Kelowna is willing to take a limited responsibility for the costs, for 50% up to a 
maximum of $25,0009. Frontage upgrades along Dehart Road would be required in accordance 
with Bylaw # 7900.  The TIA indicates that pedestrian access could be provided along the utility 
easements. 

4.6 Utilities 

The sanitary sewer services are within the jurisdiction of the City of Kelowna. Currently water is 
provided by the South-East Kelowna Irrigation District (SEKID).  According to the consulting 
engineer report10, an agreement in principle has been reached between the City of Kelowna and 
SEKID to accommodate a boundary adjustment, such that the City of Kelowna will become the 
water purveyor for the subdivision prior to 4th reading of the rezoning application, subject to the 
owner covering the administration costs incurred by SEKID for the boundary adjustment (memo 
attached). 

4.7 Public Consultation 

A Public Information Session was held for the project on April 18, 2013. There were 51 attendees 
recorded.  An exit questionnaire was prepared with 32 responses received. The road and lot 
configuration presented included the primary access from Young / Turner Roads.  Of the 32 
responses, 27 strongly disagreed that the traffic could be accommodated on this route.  The 
results of the April 18, 2013 Public Information Session are attached. The road configuration was 
changed in response to these results, and that the main access is now from Dehart Road.    

4.8 Zoning Requirements 

The zoning requirements for RU1 developments are included in the table below. Note that the lot 
current lot illustrated in the application documents illustrates a proposed configuration, but 
because a subdivision is not currently being applied for, the exact alignment of lots may change. 
The road network will not change.  However, the current configuration demonstrates that 55 RU1 

                                                
8
 EYH Consultants Ltd., Jan. 31, 2014.  Traffic Impact Assessment for the Proposed 984 Dehart Road Development, Kelowna, BC.  A 

report prepared for New Town Architecture and Urban Planning. 
9
 Muenz, S. January 21, 2014. Email to K. Funk, Dehart IIA & Sidewalk. 

10
 Aplin & Martin, 2013. Civil Engineering Servicing Brief – Proposed Dehart Road Subdivision – 984 Dehart Rd, Kelowna, BC. 

11



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 9 

 
 

– Large Lot Housing is possible for the site. No variances are necessary with the current 
configuration. 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 Minimum 550 m2 

Lot Width 16.5 m Minimum 16.5 m 

Lot Depth 30 m Minimum 30 m 

No variances are being requested for this rezoning.  Staff notes that subdivision plan is not being 
applied for at this time. The lot current lot configuration has no variances required.  

4.9 Transit 

4.10 Currently there is a transit stop at the southeast corner of the subject property. This 
existing bus stop will require upgrading to current standard (UBS2), as per the Development 
Engineering Department requirements (see attached memo). 

4.11 Pedestrian Linkages 

The internal roads will be built to a local road standard according to the Subdivision, 
Development and Servicing Bylaw No. 7900. The current subdivision layout includes a pedestrian 
connection to Torrs Road. As a subdivision is not currently being applied for and may change, a 
blanket statutory right-of-way is being requested as a condition of rezoning, with trail 
connections to be determined during the Preliminary Layout Review of subdivision.  

4.12 Geotechnical 

As discussed, much of the site has been modified over the last 20 years through grading and 
infilling. The fill was placed over peat in different locations of the property. A geotechnical 
report in 1998 concluded that buildings constructed over the existing conditions would result in 
unacceptable total and differential settlements11. The report provided a number of potential 
treatments for the property prior to development, including but not limited to: 

 Complete subexcavation of the fills, surficial topsoil layer and  peat deposits and 
replacement with granular fills; 

 Pile supports; 

 Subexcavation of fill layer, combined with preload fill to compact peat deposits; 

 Complete subexcavation of fills, topsoil and peats under proposed roads and replacement 
with granular fill and/or preloaded;  

 Dewatering during excavation due to high groundwater table; and 

 The provision of adequate subsurface and surface drainage measures. 
 

4.13 Surface Water 

                                                
11

 Golder & Associates, 1996. Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation Proposed Subdivision, Lot 2, Plan 35773, Sec. 31, TP.29, ODYD 

Dehart Road, Kelowna, British Columbia 

12



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 10 

 
 

Aplin and Martin Consultants Ltd. have provided plans accommodating overland creek flows at 
the west and northeast portions of the property (see attached plans). The plans include a 15 m 
creek and RMA along the west property line, and a 20 m wide channel and RMA / farm protection 
buffer along the northeast property line.  The West Creek cross section indicates that the 
channel will be lined with riprap, and includes culverts under proposed roadways.  The Creek 
Restoration Plan on the northeast property line will have side slopes of 6:1, transitioning into 3:1 
slopes to meet existing grade, and will not have riprap. 

4.14 Groundwater 

The Section 219 Restrictive Covenant #KM084923 stipulates that a geotechnical report that 
addresses surface and groundwater characteristics must be and outlines recommendations for an 
overall drainage plan that safeguards building sites and utility installations must be prepared. 
The Dehart Road Environmental Assessment indicates that 6 springs are known in close proximity 
to the subject property12. 

A Creek Restoration Plan for the northeast drainage channel and a plan for the West Creek 
Upgrade have been prepared by Aplin & Martin Consultants Ltd. and are attached. 

The property is within a Natural Environment Development Permit Area, and the applicant has a 
current Natural Environment Development Permit application for this property with the City.  
The approximate area of high groundwater is shown in Map 5, below. 

4.15 Environmental 

According to the Dehart Road Environmental Assessment, a number of rare and endangered 
ecosystems occur on the site.  One of these, the Fd- Water Birch – Douglas Maple ecosystem 
occurs along the northeast property line, where the creek / riparian reserve is proposed. Another 
ecosystem, the ActFd – Common Snowberry – Red-osier Dogwood Riparian, is present along the 
west property line along the open drainage in this location. While the ecosystem is not ranked by 
the Conservation Data Centre of BC, it is associated with riparian and wetland habitat 
characteristics and should be protected, according to the assessment. Within the ditches, there 
are several small isolated occurrences of cattail marsh.  These are ranked as ‘blue-listed’ or 
vulnerable, by the Conservation Data Centre of BC.  Avoidance of these areas is recommended in 
the assessment13.  The rest of the ecosystems found on site are anthropogenic, or highly 
modified, according to the report. 

The assessment noted evidence of deer and coyote, and likely provide habitat for mice, voles and 
shrews, although these species were not specifically inventoried.  Bighorn sheep were noted on 
the property during one site visit. 

The Dehart Road Environmental Assessment found no rare plants on the property. However the 
timing and sampling intensity may indicate non-detection rather than absence14.  
 
  

                                                
12

 Makonis, 2013.  Dehart Road Environmental Assessment – Submitted to New Town Planning Services Inc. 
13

 Makonis, 2013.  Dehart Road Environmental Assessment – Submitted to New Town Planning Services Inc. 
14

 Makonis, 2013.  Dehart Road Environmental Assessment – Submitted to New Town Planning Services Inc. 

13



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 11 

 
 

Map 5: Natural Environment Development Permit Areas 

 
 
 
Map 6: Neighbourhood Wetlands, Creeks and Easements 

 
  

Subject Property 

High Groundwater Area 
 

Subject Property 

Wetlands 

Stream (Typical) 

High Groundwater 
Stream 

Wetlands 

14



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 12 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Focus development to designated growth areas15. 

Permanent Growth Boundary. Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified in the OCP. 
Support development of property outside the Permanent Growth Boundary for more intensive 
uses only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land Use designations in place as of 
initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy.  

Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs per ha located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres in particular and existing 
areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use. 

Farm Protection DP Guidelines16 

Objectives 

 Protect farm land and farm operations; 

 Minimize the impact of urban encroachment and land use conflicts on agricultural land; 

 Minimize conflicts created by activities designated as farm use by ALC regulation and non-
farm uses within agricultural areas. 

Guidelines 

 On properties located adjacent to agricultural lands, design buildings to reduce impact 
from activities associated with farm operations.  Design considerations include, but are 
not limited to maximizing the setback between agricultural land and buildings and 
structures, and reducing the number of doors, windows, and outdoor patios facing 
agricultural land. 

 On agricultural and non-agricultural lands, establish and maintain a landscape buffer 
along the agricultural and/or property boundary, except where development is for a 
permitted farm use that will not encourage public attendance and does not concern 
additional residences (including secondary suites), in accordance with guidelines provided 
by Ministry of Agriculture “Guide to Edge Planning” and the ALC report “Landscape Buffer 
Specifications” or its replacement. 

 Design any subdivision or urban development of land to reduce densities and the intensity 
of uses gradually towards the boundary of agricultural lands. 
 

Ensure environmentally sustainable development17. 
 
Environmentally Sensitive Area Linkages. Ensure that development activity does not 
compromise the ecological function of environmentally sensitive areas and maintains the 
integrity of plant and wildlife corridors. 
 

                                                
15 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Farm Protection Development Permit Chapter; p. 15.2 – 15.4.  
16 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Farm Protection Development Permit Chapter; p. 15.2 – 15.4.  
17

 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Development Process Chapter 5; p. 5.17 

15



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 13 

 
 

Protection Measures. Protect and preserve environmentally sensitive areas (ESAs) using one or 
more of the following measures, depending on which measures are appropriate to a given 
situation: 

 Dedication; 

 Return to Crown Land or covenant for conservation purposes with the City or other 
government body;and 

 Ensure setbacks on adjacent developments on adjacent developments are adequate to 
maintain the integrity of the ESA. 

5.2 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan 

New Growth Areas18. Discourage the establishment of new growth areas within or beyond 
agricultural areas that create additional traffic pressure on the local rural road network. 

Farmland Preservation19. Direct urban land uses to areas within the permanent growth 
boundary, in order to reduce development and speculative pressure. This is to encourage the 
preservation of agricultural lands and discourage further extension of existing urban areas into 
agricultural lands. 

Urban Buffers. Require new development, adjacent to agricultural areas, to establish setbacks, 
fencing and landscape buffers on the urban side of the defined urban – rural/agricultural 
boundary. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

A Geotechnical report will be required to define building requirements / limitations. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

A full list of Development Engineering Services requirements is included in the attached memo.  
A summary includes: 

 Prior to final adoption of the zoning bylaw, a pre-design report must identify all the 
offsite servicing needs in accordance with the Subdivision, Development and Servicing 
Bylaw No. 7900. 

 The high water table may impact site and building design, and should be determined by 
an engineer and detailed on a Lot Grading Plan. 

 A report by a Geotechnical Engineer in the field of hydro-geotechnical engineering to 
identify ground water characteristics and limitations, as well as soil conditions and 
potential requirements or restrictions regarding slope stability, soil suitability and 
drainage requirements. 

 Provide an adequate domestic and fire water system with adequate water pressure, in 
accordance with Bylaw No. 7900. 

 Provide an adequately sized sanitary sewer system complete with individual lot 
connections. 

                                                
18 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 99. 
19 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 131 & 132. 

16



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 14 

 
 

 Provide an adequately sized drainage system and a detailed Lot Grading Plan, complete 
with dedications, rights of way, setbacks and non-disturbance areas, a Stormwater 
Management Plan, and an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan. 

 Upgrades to Dehart Road to an urban standard, including all fronting improvements. 

 Provide an additional highway allowance widening on Dehart Road. 

 Recommendations from the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) on a roadway access onto Dehart 
will be requirements of zoning. 

 Provide underground service connections and street lights. 

 Design and construction must be prepared and inspected by a Consulting Civil Engineer in 
accordance with Bylaw No. 7900. 

 Provide a Servicing Agreement in accordance with Bylaw No. 7900, including the 
preparation of adequate drawings and estimates prior to the preparation of the Servicing 
Agreement. 

 Provide all necessary Statutory Rights-of-Way for any utility corridors required, including 
those on proposed or existing City Lands. 

6.3 Bylaw Services 

The property was subject to nine bylaw complaints between 2008 and 2011.  The complaints 
varied, but included noise, unsightly premises, nuisance trees and shrubs and altering the land 
without a development permit.  All bylaw incidents were concluded.  

6.4 Parks and Public Spaces Department 

The Parks and Public Spaces Department have concerns with the ground and surface water 
conditions of the site, and potential impacts to Thomson Marsh and Mission Recreation Park.  
They recommend that any creek restoration be done by the developer and that a three year 
maintenance requirement by the developer. 
 
Infrastructure Planning, in consultation with Parks Services, have determined that there is no 
need for park dedication within this subdivision, based on the Linear Park Master Plan, the OCP, 
and that the number of units is not high enough to justify the provision of a park at this time.   
 
However, Parks Services has identified a need for a pedestrian walkway through the 
development, and across Dehart Road from Bartholomew Court.  This would provide access for 
high school students going to Okanagan Mission High School, and a pedestrian access to Dehart 
Road at the mid-point of the property.  These should be constructed to the Bylaw No. 7900 
standard.  
 
Parks Services recommends that any environmental areas are protected with a No Build / No 
Disturb Covenant on private lands. 

6.5 Policy and Planning 

The RU1 zoning requested is permitted in the S2RES portion of the property, and therefore 
compliant with the OCP.  Although the portion designated for Multi-Unit Residential – Low Density 
(MRL) is not consistent with the OCP, it is consistent with the surrounding uses and is also 

17



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 15 

 
 

compliant with other policies within the OCP, including environmental policies of 
Environmentally Sensitive Linkages, Protection Measures, Voluntary Protection, and Habitat 
Protection. The proposal indicates there will be pedestrian connections for easier access to the 
transit stop on Dehart Road.   

6.6 Subdivision Approving Officer 

The Subdivision Approving Officer notes that fill has been brought to the site for years without 
geotechnical investigation, and that Development Cost Charges (DCCs) will be payable at final 
subdivision stage. 

6.7 Fire Department 

Fire Department access, fire flows, and hydrants must be in accordance with the BC Building 
Code and the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900.  This bylaw requires a minimum of 60 
ltr/sec fire flows.  Additional comments will be required at the time of the building permit 
application. 

6.8 Fortis BC Inc. – Electric 

The subject property is currently serviced by a primary electrical distribution extension from 
Dehart Road. This line crosses both a neighbour’s property and a waterway without a statutory 
right of way or permitting.  Until such a time as this line is protected by land rights, any servicing 
to the proposed subdivision will require a new extension from the primary distribution facilities 
along Dehart Rd.   

The applicant is responsible for costs associated with servicing the proposed lots as well as the 
provision of appropriate land rights where required. It should be noted that additional land rights 
issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with at that time, prior to 
construction. 

6.9 Fortis Gas 

Fortis BC Gas has a pipeline running at a diagonal through the northern portion of the property. 
They have provided these comments, as well as general development comments. 

 Fortis pipeline may require an engineering assessment and possible upgrade to current 
standards at the expense of the owner. 

 The existing soil conditions, final site grades and building elevations, as well as 
preloading, must be considered as it relates to the existing pipeline and Right of Way 
(ROW). 

 Fortis BC encourages the use of its ROW for linear parks. 

 Fortis BC requests that the proposed property lines align with, and do not cross, the Fortis 
BC ROW boundaries. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Application Received:   March 26, 2013 

Public Information Session  April 18, 2013 

18



 
OCP13-0011 / Z13-0016 – Page 16 

 
 

The proposal was presented to the public.  Most of the feedback was regarding the road 
configuration through Young and Turner Roads.  The applicant took this feedback into 
consideration and prepared an alternate road and layout configuration using Dehart Road as 
the primary access. 

Application put on hold:  May 20, 2013 

Application was put on hold to investigate the possibility of applying for a land inclusion / 
exclusion through the Agricultural Land Commission with the adjacent parcel.  

Traffic Impact Analysis  January 31, 2014 

EYH Consultants Ltd. issued a revised Traffic Impact Assessment for the Proposed Dehart Road 
Development. 

Revised Plans Received  April 22, 2014 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Manager, Environment & Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map – 1 page 
Site Photos – 1 page 
OCP Amendment Plan – 1 page 
Riparian Layout Plan – 1 page 
Lot Easement and Covenant Plan – 1 page 
Pedestrian Network Plan – 1 page 
Aplin & Martin Consultants Ltd. – Civil Package – 9 pages 
Key Plan – West Creek Upgrade – 2 pages 
Creek Restoration Plan -1 page 
Development Engineering Manager – Memo 
South East Kelowna Irrigation District – Memo 
Settlement and Release Agreement – 2010 
Section 219 Restrictive Covenant #KM084923 – 20 pages 

19



984 DEHART ROAD

OCP13-0011

Z13-0016

Subject Property

Map: 2,227 x 1,265 m -- Scale 1:13,153 2014-04-29

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

Page 1 of 1Map Output

4/29/2014http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clien...

20



21



M
A

P
 "A

"

S
2R

E
S

 TO
 M

R
L

S
2R

E
S

 TO
 M

R
L

M
R

L TO
 S

2R
E

S

M
R

L R
E

M
A

IN
S

 M
R

L

S
2R

E
S

 R
E

M
A

IN
S

 S
2R

E
S

S
2R

E
S

 =
 S

IN
G

LE
/TW

O
 U

N
IT R

E
S

ID
E

N
TIA

L

M
R

L =
 M

U
LTIP

LE
 U

N
IT R

E
S

ID
E

N
TIA

L (LO
W

 D
E

N
S

ITY
)

22



M
A

P
 "B

"

FR
O

M
: A

1 - A
G

R
IC

U
LTU

R
A

L

TO
: R

U
1 - LA

R
G

E
 LO

T H
O

U
S

IN
G

23



R
IP

A
R

IA
N

 LA
Y

O
U

T P
LA

N

N
T02

1
1

.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

A
P

R
IL 2014

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

0M
e

t
e

r
s

0
5

0
1

0
0

24



LO
T E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T A
N

D
C

O
V

E
N

A
N

T P
LA

N

N
T01

1
1

.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

A
P

R
IL 2014

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

0M
e

t
e

r
s

0
5

0
1

0
0

25



 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
A
 
  

 

Single Family Residential 
 
 

Protected Riparian Area 
 
  

Transit Network 
 

Transit Stop 
 

Pedestrian Network 

Pedestrian and Transit Network Plan 
984 Dehart Road 
April 15, 2014 

26



N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
R

:

A
P

LIN
 &

 M
A

R
TIN

 P
R

O
JE

C
T N

o
.

S
ITE

 LO
C

A
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

S
ITE

12-651

A
&

M
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 N

O
.: 12-651-01

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T          E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
         P

LA
N

N
IN

G
         S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

      454 Leo
n A

venue,  K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (778) 436-2312,  E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

164 S
T. P

A
U

L S
TR

E
E

T
K

E
LO

W
N

A
, B

C
V

1W
 2C

7

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
D

E
X

S
H

E
E

T N
U

M
B

E
R

S
H

E
E

T TITLE

G
E

N
E

R
A

L N
O

TE
S

 A
N

D
 LE

G
E

N
D

B
AR

TH
O

LO
M

EW
 C

T

K
E

LO
W

N
A

, B
C

TU
R

N
E

R
 R

D

D
E

H
A

R
T R

D

B.C. GAS ROW

P
LA

N
 K

A
P

62654
LO

T 1

SW
AM

P RD

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
O

A
D

LO
T 1, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

 31, TP
 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

C
O

V
E

R
 P

A
G

E

LO
T S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 P

LA
N

R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - TU

R
N

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 (E
X

TE
N

S
IO

N
)

R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 A

 - S
TA

. 0+
000 - 0+

200

0102030405

TO
R

R
S

 R
D

D
E

H
A

R
T R

D

Y
O

U
N

G
 R

D

R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 B

C
R

E
E

K
 R

E
S

TO
R

A
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 D

E
TA

ILS

070709

R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 A

 - S
TA

. 0+
200 - 0+

330
06

27



G
E

N
E

R
A

L N
O

TE
S

 A
N

D
 LE

G
E

N
D

2
02

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

28



LO
T S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 P

LA
N

03
3

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

29



R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - TU

R
N

E
R

R
O

A
D

 (E
X

TE
N

S
IO

N
)

04
4

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

30



R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 A

S
TA

 0+
000 - 0+

200

05
5

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

31



R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 A

S
TA

 0+
200 - 0+

330

06
6

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

32



R
O

A
D

W
O

R
K

S
 - R

O
A

D
 B

07
7

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

33



S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 D

E
TA

ILS

9
09

9
.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

34



.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2012

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

0

K
E

Y
 P

LA
N

 - W
E

S
T C

R
E

E
K

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E

01
01

02

35



.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2012

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

0

P
R

O
FILE

 A
N

D
 S

E
C

TIO
N

02
02

02

W
E

S
T C

R
E

E
K

 - P
R

O
FILE

W
E

S
T C

R
E

E
K

 - C
R

O
S

S
 S

E
C

TIO
N

N
.T.S

.

36



C
R

E
E

K
 R

E
S

TO
R

A
TIO

N
P

LA
N

08
8

9

S
TR

E
E

T N
A

M
E

.

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TIA
L S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
984 D

E
H

A
R

T R
D

., K
E

LO
W

N
A

 B
C

P
H

. (250) 860-8185

N
E

W
 TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LTD

.
1450 P

A
N

D
O

S
Y

 S
T., K

E
LO

W
N

A
 B

C
, V

1Y
 1P

3

12-651 -

.

C
LIE

N
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

P
R

O
JE

C
T M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T      E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
      P

LA
N

N
IN

G
      S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G

454 Leo
n A

venue, K
elo

w
na, B

.C
. C

anad
a   V

1Y
 6J3

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (250) 436-2312, E
-m

ail: g
eneral@

ap
linm

artin.co
m

O
F

#
#

#
#

M
A

R
C

H
 2013

LO
T 2, P

LA
N

 K
A

P
62654, S

E
C

. 31, TP
. 29, O

.D
.Y

.D
.

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

12-651

2

37



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date: May 15, 2013 
File No.:  Z13-0016 
 
To: Land Use Management (GS) 
 
From: Development Engineering Manager 
 
Subject: 984 Dehart Road       A1 to RU1 
 
 
The Development Services Department has the following comments and requirements  
associated with this rezoning for the proposed residential development. The following 
Works & Services are required for this application: 
 
 
 
.1) General 
 

a) This proposed subdivision may require the installation of centralized mail 
delivery equipment. Please contact Rick Ould, Delivery Planning Officer, 
Canada Post Corporation, 530 Gaston Avenue, Kelowna, BC V1Y 2K0 to 
obtain further information and to determine suitable location(s) within the 
development. 
 

b) Provide a Pre-design report to address all offsite Utility and 
Transportation servicing including costs. 

 
c) PRIOR TO FINAL ADOPTION OF THE ZONE AMENDING BYLAW:, a 

Predesign report specific to this development is required to identify all 
offsite servicing needs in accordance with the Subdivision, Development 
and Servicing Bylaw.   A Servicing Agreement for all offsite works 
required by this subdivision must be provided, along with Performance 
Security, before final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw. 

 
d) Where there is a possibility of a high water table or surcharging of storm 

drains during major storm events, non-basement homes may be required.  
This must be determined by the engineer and detailed on the Lot Grading 
Plan required in the drainage section. 

 
e) The Drainage Division noted that tributary stream crosses the lands. The 

stream may affect the layout.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



Z13-0016 984 Dehart Road Page 2 of 5 

  

.2) Geotechnical Report 
 

a) Provide a comprehensive geotechnical report prepared by a Professional 
Engineer competent in the field of hydro-geotechnical engineering to 
address the items below:  NOTE:  The City is relying on the 
Geotechnical Engineer’s report to prevent any damage to property 
and/or injury to persons from occurring as a result of problems with 
soil slippage or soil instability related to this proposed subdivision.  

 
The Geotechnical reports must be submitted to the Development 
Services Department prior to submission of engineering drawings. 

 
(i) Area ground water characteristics, including any springs and 

overland surface drainage courses traversing the property.  
Identify any monitoring required. 

 
(ii) Site suitability for development. 

 
(iii) Site soil characteristics (i.e. fill areas, sulphate content, unsuitable 

soils such as organic material, etc.). 
 

(iv) Any special requirements for construction of roads, utilities and 
building structures. 

 
(v) Suitability of on-site disposal of storm water and sanitary waste, 

including effects upon adjoining lands. 
 

(vi) Slope stability, rock fall hazard and slippage including the effects 
of drainage and septic tank effluent on the site. 

 
(vii) Identify slopes greater than 30%. 

 
ii) Top of bank assessment and location including recommendations 

for property line locations, septic field locations, building setbacks, 
and ground water disposal locations. 

 
iii) Recommendations for items that should be included in a 

Restrictive Covenant. 
 

iv) Any special requirements that the proposed subdivision should 
undertake so that it will not impact the bank(s).  The report must 
consider erosion and structural requirements. 

 
v) Any items required in other sections of this document. 

 
vi) Recommendations for erosion and sedimentation controls for 

water and wind. 
 

vii) Recommendations for roof drains and perimeter drains. 
 
.3) Water 
 

a) The property is located within the South East Kelowna Irrigation District 
(SEKID) service area. 

 
b) Provide an adequately sized domestic water and fire protection system 

complete with individual lot connections.  The water system must be 
capable of supplying domestic and fire flow demands of the project in 

39



Z13-0016 984 Dehart Road Page 3 of 5 

  

accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw.  
Provide water calculations for this subdivision to confirm this.  Ensure 
every building site is located at an elevation that ensures water pressure 
is within the bylaw pressure limits.  Note:  Private pumps are not 
acceptable for addressing marginal pressure. 

 
.4) Sanitary Sewer 
 

a) Provide an adequately sized sanitary sewer system complete with 
individual lot connections. 
 

b) Our records indicate a 200mm main exists at the end of Torrs Road 
adjacent to the site.  

 
.5) Drainage 
 

a) Provide an adequately sized drainage system complete with individual lot 
connections.  The Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw require 
that each lot be provided with an individual connection; however, the City 
Engineer may permit use of individual ground water disposal systems, 
where soils are suitable.  For on-site disposal of drainage water, a 
hydrogeotechnical report will be required complete with a design for the 
disposal method (i.e. trench drain / rock pit).  The Lot Grading Plan must 
show the design and location of these systems for each lot. 

 
b) Provide the following drawings: 

 
i) A detailed Lot Grading Plan (indicate on the Lot Grading Plan any 

slopes that are steeper than 30% and areas that have greater 
than 1.0 m of fill); 

 
ii) A detailed Stormwater Management Plan for this subdivision; and, 

 
iii) An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan. 

 
c) Show details of dedications, rights-of-way, setbacks and non-disturbance 

areas on the lot Grading Plan. 
 

d) Significant banks are located on the subject property.  The slopes appear 
to be sensitive to erosion; temporary and permanent measures must be 
taken to prevent erosion and sediment transport. 

 
e) Identify clearly on a contour map, or lot grading plan, the top of bank(s).  

Provide cross sections along the top of the bank at each property corner 
and at locations where there are significant changes in slope.  Cross 
sections are to be perpendicular to the contour of the slope.  Show the 
proposed property lines on the cross sections.  Not all areas have a clear 
top of bank; and therefore, field reconnaissance by City staff and the 
applicant may be needed to verify a suitable location for property lines. 

 
.6) Roads 
 

(a) Dehart Road is designated an arterial road. Dehart Rd must be upgraded 
to an urban standard along the full frontage of this proposed 
development, including curb and gutter, separate sidewalk, drainage 
system including catch basins, manholes and pavement removal and 
replacement, street lighting and re-location or adjustment of utility 
appurtenances if required to accommodate the upgrading construction. 

40



Z13-0016 984 Dehart Road Page 4 of 5 

  

The estimated cost for this construction for bonding purposes is 
$128,000.00. Not included in the estimate are costs for pole relocations.   
 

b) Provide an additional highway allowance widening of ~3.20m (west end) 
tapering to ~6.22m (east end) on Dehart Road.  This widening is to be 
accomplished by: 

 
i) A dedication on the subdivision plan. 
 

c) The existing bus stop on Dehart Road will require upgrading to current 
standard (UBS2). 

 
d) Landscaped boulevards, complete with underground irrigation, may be 

required on Dehart Road. 
 

e) Driveway access is not permitted onto Dehart Road.  A restrictive 
covenant in favour of the City of Kelowna, registered under Section 219 of 
the Land Title Act, must be granted to the effect that vehicular access is 
not permitted from abutting lots.  The subdivision plan must be endorsed 
to the effect that a covenant is to be registered.  The covenant must be 
registered as a priority charge and is to be indicated on the Lot Grading 
Plan. 

 
f) Roadway access to Dehart Road must be reviewed via a Traffic Impact 

Analysis (TIA). The City’s Transportation & Mobility group will determine 
the terms of reference for the study. Recommendations from the Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA) will become requirements of rezoning. 

 
g) Verify that physical driveway access will satisfy City requirements for all 

lots.  For steeper lots (15% and greater), show driveways on the lot 
grading plan with grades or profiles.  Where lots are serviced by onsite 
sewage disposal systems, show limits of cut and fill lines. 

 
.7) Power and Telecommunication Services and Street Lights 
 

a) All proposed distribution and service connections for the subdivision are 
to be installed underground.  Existing distribution and service 
connections, on that portion of a road immediately adjacent to the site, 
are to be relocated and installed underground 

 
b) Street lights must be installed on all roads.   

 
c) Before making application for approval of your subdivision plan, please 

make arrangements with Fortis BC for the pre-payment of applicable 
charges and tender a copy of their receipt with the subdivision 
application. 

 
d) Make servicing applications to the respective Power and 

Telecommunication utility companies.  The utility companies are required 
to obtain the City’s approval before commencing construction.  

 
.8) Design and Construction 
 

a) Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works 
and site servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and 
all such work is subject to the approval of the City Engineer.  Drawings 
must conform to City standards and requirements. 

 

41



Z13-0016 984 Dehart Road Page 5 of 5 

  

b) Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City’s 
“Engineering Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy.  Please note the 
number of sets and drawings required for submissions. 

 
c) Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance 

with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to 
Part 5 and Schedule 3). 

 
d) A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C’) must 

be completed prior to submission of any designs. 
 

e) Before any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision 
application commences, design drawings prepared by a professional 
engineer must be submitted to the City’s Works & Utilities Department.  
The design drawings must first be “Issued for Construction” by the City 
Engineer.  On examination of design drawings, it may be determined that 
rights-of-way are required for current or future needs. 

 
.9) Servicing Agreements for Works and Services 
 

a) A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City 
lands in accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing 
Bylaw No. 7900.  The applicant’s Engineer, prior to preparation of 
Servicing Agreements, must provide adequate drawings and estimates 
for the required works.  The Servicing Agreement must be in the form as 
described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw. 

 
b) Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the 

Bonding and Insurance requirements of the Owner.  The liability limit is 
not to be less than $5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the 
insurance policy as an additional insured. 

 
.10) Other Engineering Comments 
 
 

a) Provide all necessary Statutory Rights-of-Way for any utility corridors 
required, including those on proposed or existing City Lands. 

 
b) If any road dedication affects lands encumbered by a Utility right-of-way 

(such as Terasen, etc.) please obtain the approval of the utility prior to 
application for final subdivision approval.  Any works required by the utility 
as a consequence of the road dedication must be incorporated in the 
construction drawings submitted to the City’s Development Manager. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Steve Muenz, P.Eng. 
Development Engineering Manager   
   
SS 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 9, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AR) 

Application: Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 Owner: 
0781540 BC Ltd.,             
Inc. No. BC0781540 

Address: 560 & 582 McKay Avenue Applicant: 
G Group Land Development 
(Andrew Gaucher) 

Subject: Rezoning & Official Community Plan Amendment Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Proposed OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0006 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot 12, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located at 560 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, 
BC; Lot 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located at 582 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; and the 
portion of McKay Avenue to be closed adjacent to Lots 12 and 13, from the MRM – Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) designation to the MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/ Commercial) 
designation, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department 
dated May 9, 2014, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0008 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 12, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located at 
560 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; Lot 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located at 582 McKay 
Avenue, Kelowna, BC; and the portion of McKay Avenue to be closed adjacent to Lots 12 and 13,  
from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the C4 – Urban Centre Commercial zone, as shown 
on Map “B” attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9, 2014, be 
considered by Council; 
 

69



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT Council considers the APC public process under OCP07-0032 and Z07-0093 to be 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined 
in the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9, 2014; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
completion of a Purchase/Sale Agreement with the City, finalization of the road closure adjacent 
to Lots 12 & 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769 (560 & 582 McKay Avenue), and registration of 
the public access Right-of-Way agreement, to the satisfaction of the City of Kelowna; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
dedication of a 0.75 m widening of the north lane; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
registration of a plan of subdivision to consolidated the properties into one title; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
registration of an agreement in the Land Titles Office, to the satisfaction of the City of Kelowna, 
securing the provision of six (6) required parking spaces on the property at 561 & 583 McKay 
Avenue upon its redevelopment; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Parks & Public Places Branch and Development Engineering Branch, as 
attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9, 2014, being completed to 
its satisfaction; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with 
Council’s consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the 
subject properties; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 10246 and Bylaw No. 10245, for Rezoning Application Z07-0093 
and for OCP Amendment Application OCP07-0032 respectively, be forwarded for rescindment 
consideration, and the files be closed. 

2.0 Purpose  

These applications seek to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP) future land use designation 
for the subject lands from MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) to MXR – Mixed Use 
(Residential/Commercial), per attached Map ‘A’, and to rezone them from RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing to C4 – Urban Centre Commercial, per attached Map ‘B’, to facilitate the development of 
a 3-storey mixed-use development.   

In conjunction with the subject applications, staff is also recommending that Council rescind 1st, 
2nd and 3rd readings for the previous 2007 OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications for the 
subject lands, which have now expired and are superceded by the current applications under 
consideration. 

  

70



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 3 

 
 

3.0 Urban Planning Department  

In terms of land use and form of the development, the subject applications are consistent with 
the 2007 OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications that received favourable consideration by 
Council at Public Hearing in 2009 with the exception that the project is now proposed to be 
phased. (See the Background and Proposal sections below for more detail).  

The subject properties are located in the South Pandosy Urban Centre. The current designation 
of Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) is intended to reflect the principle of residential 
densification in urban centres to support the centre’s commercial component and to promote 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) objectives. While there are concerns regarding the 
further expansion of commercially designated lands within the urban centre, the proposed 
mixed-use project does include live-work units ― 2 in phase one, and a commitment to the 
minimum provision of a further 2 in phase two. Further, the proposed development would pose 
minimal intrusion into the existing neighbourhood, as it is discretely located between an existing 
commercial frontage on Pandosy Street and Osprey Park, and bordered by a public parking 
facility and new commercial development to the south. 

The proposal is consistent with City policies to maximize and secure pedestrian and cycling 
connectivity with the provision of an ultimate 6m wide, east-west connection through the 
development site to Osprey Park, as well as landscaped plaza/seating area at the building’s 
southwest corner adjacent to McKay Avenue. Overall the project will foster a mix of uses 
including retail, office space, and a residential component that will support the pedestrian-
friendly environment envisioned for the South Pandosy area, and will contribute to achieving a 
highly urbanized concentration of complementary land uses.  

Staff has received a letter from the KLO Central Neighbourhood Association (KLOCNA), dated 
April 9, 2014, regarding several concerns with the proposed applications and development. 
KLOCNA notes that the provision of the 2 live-work units is not sufficient to meet the OCP’s 
intent for medium density residential in this location, nor does it guarantee long-term residential 
use. Further, KLOCNA is not supportive of a proposal to vary parking, nor the related loss of on-
street parking with the proposed closure of McKay Avenue, given the area’s ongoing difficulties 
with parking. (Refer to the attached KLOCNA letter for further detailed comments). 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

On November 3, 2009, OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications (under OCP07-0032 and Z07-
0093) for the four properties at 560, 561, 582 and 583 McKay Avenue received 2nd and 3rd reading, 
following the Public Hearing held on the same date. Under these applications, the same 
developer as the present proposed to amend the OCP designation to Commercial and to rezone to 
the C4 zone to facilitate the development of a 4-storey mixed-use development at 560 & 
582 McKay Avenue and 561 & 583 McKay Avenue, with 4 live-work units and a total commercial 
floor area of 3,703 m2. The proposed development was to be constructed over an under-building 
parking structure partially set into the ground, and arranged on either side of a central courtyard 
area. Under conditions of adoption, it was required that the McKay Avenue roadway be closed 
and consolidated with the four properties, with a public access right-of-way secured over the 
central courtyard to maintain an east-west public pedestrian link with Osprey Park. Additionally, 
a new, north-south local road connection was required as an extension of McKay Avenue south to 
Osprey Avenue.  

71



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 4 

 
 

Council has subsequently approved several extensions to these 2007 applications, with the latest 
extension having recently expired on May 3, 2014. In tandem with the subject applications under 
consideration, staff is advancing a report to rescind 2nd and 3rd reading of the 2007 applications. 

4.2 Project Description 

Subsequent to the 2007 applications, the developer now wishes to revise the proposal to phase 
the proposed development, and proceed with the first phase at 560 & 582 McKay Avenue. When 
the developer wishes to proceed with the second phase of the development at 561 & 583 McKay 
Avenue, separate OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications will need to be submitted at that 
time for Council consideration. It is anticipated that the second phase would mirror the design of 
the first phase, and potentially be connected by elevated walkways over the pedestrian walkway. 

Under the subject applications for phase one, the developer is proposing to develop the 
properties at 560 & 582 McKay Avenue with a 3-storey mixed-use building, to include 2 live-work 
units and a total commercial floor area of 1,411 m2. (The developer has indicated that a 
minimum of a further 2 live-work units will be included in the project’s second phase). The live-
work and smaller commercial units are located at grade toward the front (west end) of the 
building. Parking is provided at grade under-building toward the rear (east end) of the building, 
with access from the north lane.  

As part of the subject development proposal for phase one, the developer proposes to close and 
consolidate the portion of McKay Avenue roadway adjacent to the subject site. As in the earlier 
2007 proposal, a public access right-of-way is required to be secured within this former roadway 
to maintain an east-west public pedestrian connection with Osprey Park. In the interim, until 
phase two of the development proceeds, it is proposed that fire access to phase one also be 
accommodated within the former McKay Avenue roadway (see attached site plan). 

The proposed mixed-use building is presently conceived of as a stepped, flat-roof contemporary 
design, transitioning from one storey at the east end of the building up to 3 storeys. The building 
integrates a number of deck spaces to serve as gathering areas for future building occupants and 
to activate building elevations, notably adjacent to the proposed pedestrian connection and 
Osprey Park. The proposed building materials are primarily stucco, corrugated metal cladding, 
and pre-finished metal panels, in combination with aluminium frame glazing. Along the building’s 
rear elevation adjacent to Osprey Park, the at-grade, under-building parking area will be 
screened and secured by a stainless steel grille, with regular vertical break elements to provide 
visual interest. A 1.5 m landscape buffer, with columnar trees and grasses, will further screen 
the building’s parking area from the park.  

The majority of the proposed east-west pedestrian connection will be constructed with phase one 
(at approx. 4.5 m of the ultimate 6 m width) – the remaining 1.5 m will be constructed at phase 
two. The connection includes a feature landscape/sculptural element and seating area adjacent 
to the McKay Avenue frontage, and the proposed surface is to be a broom-finish, saw-cut 
concrete with concrete banding. Bollards placed along the east and west ends of the pedestrian 
connection will ensure no vehicular access through this area.  

A Development Variance Permit is required to vary the required parking for phase one of the 
development from 28 spaces required to 22 spaces proposed, and to vary the number of loading 
spaces from 1 required to 0 provided. The developer proposes to accommodate the 6 varied 
parking spaces for phase one within the project’s second phase, upon construction. Council will 
have an opportunity to consider the associated Development Permit and Development Variance 
Permit applications pending favourable consideration of the land use.  

  

72



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 5 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject properties are located in an area of transition between Pandosy Street and Osprey 
Park in the South Pandosy Urban Centre area. The area is designated for future Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) development. Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Residential 

East P3 – Parks & Open Space Osprey Park 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Residential & Public Parking 

West C4- Urban Centre Commercial Mixed Use & Commercial 

 
Subject Property Map: 560 & 582 McKay Avenue 
 

 
  

Subject 

Properties 

Road Closure Area, 
incl. proposed 

pedestrian 
connection & temp. 

fire lane 

73



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 6 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The project compares the requirements of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
C4 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
RM5 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 

PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Site Area 460 m2 460 m2 
1,646 m2  

(Consolidated) 

Development Regulations 

Floor Area Ratio 
1.5 FAR Permitted 
1.3 – mixed use project 
0.2 – covered parking 

1.3 FAR Permitted 
1.1 – base density 

0.2 covered parking 

 
0.86 

Height 15 m / 4 storeys 15 m / 4 storeys 15 m / 3 storeys 

Front Yard (E) 0 m 6.0 m  1.12 m 

Side Yard (S) 2.0 m (abutting RU6 zone) 7.5 m Approx. 13 m 

Side Yard (N) 0 m 7.5 m 0 m 

Rear Yard (W) 0 m 9.0 m 1.5 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements Min. 28 spaces 22 spaces  

Bicycle Parking 4 class I / 10 class II  Meets requirements 

Private Open Space 6 m2 (per bachelor unit) Meets requirements 

Loading Space 1 space 0 spaces 
 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary parking from 28 spaces required to 22 spaces provided. 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary loading from 1 space required to 0 spaces provided. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

Staff recommends that the APC public process under OCP07-0032 and Z07-0093 be considered 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, and that 
the process is sufficiently early and does not need to be further ongoing in this case. 
Furthermore, additional consultation with the Regional District of Central Okanagan, other 
boards, councils or agencies listed in Section 879, in not required in this case.  

Staff has reviewed this application and it may move forward without affecting either the City’s 
Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan.  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 5 - Development Process 

Policy 5.3.2 - Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of 
existing infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done 
by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Policy 5.8.1 – Public Space. Integrate safe, high-quality, human-scaled, multi-use public spaces, 
such as parks, plazas, and squares as part of development or redevelopment within Urban and 
Village Centres.  

74



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 7 

 
 

Policy 5.10.1 – Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and private 
sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of frequently 
used connections and informal pedestrian routes. With new developments, require dedication of 
on-site walking and cycling paths where necessary to provide links to adjacent parks, schools, 
transit stops, recreation facilities, employment nodes, cul-de-sacs and large activity areas. 
 
Policy 5.11.1 - Parking Relaxations. Consider parking requirement relaxations, in areas that are 
not part of a cash-in-lieu program, where an approved TDM strategy indicates a lower use of 
vehicles and the City is satisfied that parking relaxations would not create parking spill-over 
problems on adjoining neighbourhood streets. Parking relaxations will not be considered in 
hillside areas (as defined on Map 4.1 - Future Land Use). 
 
Policy 5.25.3 – Office Building Location. Encourage office buildings providing more than 929 m2 
of useable space to locate in the City Centre or the Town Centres. This policy does not include 
offices integral to business park/industrial uses and “corporate offices” allowable under relevant 
industrial zones. 
 
Policy 5.27.2 - Offices Near Transit. Direct new office development to areas served by public 
transit. 
 
Policy 5.40.1 - Evaluation Checklist. Evaluate development applications that require an OCP 
Amendment on the basis of the extent to which they comply with underlying OCP objectives, 
including the following: 

 

 Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater than 
30%? N/A 

 Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP Maps 
4.1 and 5.2)? Yes 

 Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, institutional, 
and/or recreational uses within individual buildings or larger development projects? Yes 

 Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? Yes 

 Does the proposed development increase the supply of affordable (as defined in the OCP) 
apartments or townhouses? No 

 Is the property serviced with water and City sanitary sewer at the time of application? Yes 

 Could the proposed project be built at no financial cost to the City? (This should consider 
operational and maintenance costs.) Yes 

 Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, 
especially during peak hours? Yes - the proposed development would locate employment 
uses in an urban centre and near transit. 

 Is there transit service within 400 m of non-residential projects or major employment 
generators (50+ employees)? Yes 

 Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, urbanized 
land? Yes. 

 Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open space 
than would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including required 
open space dedications or non-developable areas)? No 

 Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (see Map 5.4) that already 
have the required OCP designation? No 

75



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 8 

 
 

 Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic, etc.) on adjoining properties 
where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? Yes 

 Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? Yes 

 If the project goes ahead, would surrounding property owners be likely to develop their 
properties as per OCP Future Land Use and other City policy provisions? Yes 

 Would the additional density or new land use designation enhance the surrounding 
neighbourhood in a way that the current land use designation does not? No 

 Could the project be supported without over-burdening existing park and other 
community resources or threatening the viability of existing neighbourhood resources? Yes 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Building related comments will be provided at time of Development Permit application. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Department Memorandum, dated March 10, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Rezoning approval is based on adequate fire department access. Fire Department access is 
required to be a minimum of 6 m and the turning radius on to the east access lane adequate to 
accommodate a fire truck (BCBC 3.2.5.6). Additional comments will be required with the 
development permit application. 

6.4 Parks & Public Places Department 

 Ensure spacing of bollards on McKay Avenue and Osprey Park frontages prevents access by 
motor vehicles.  

 Based on TAC standards for two-way bike travel, provide along the pedestrian walkway a 
clear lane of travel of a min. 4 m without obstruction, such as bicycles and bicycle racks.  

 Provide a cross-section to scale that spans the eastern property line and includes grading 
information for the parkade, planting bed, plant material, and park.  

 Provide a detail of the proposed parking screen along the park frontage including information 
on proposed dimensions and material specifications. 

6.5 Interior Health Authority 

This application is located in the South Pandosy area and has been identified as a growth area 
within the OCP. Interior Health is in support of the application as it aligns with the concept of 
creation of mixed land use and improved health outcomes. 

Neighbourhoods with mixed land use and access to schools, civic services, green space, retail, 
employment opportunities, and residential can improve opportunities to engage in physical 
activity (walking, cycling) and a reduction in vehicle miles travelled. The research has shown that 
there is strong link between mixed land use and reduction in unintentional injury, mental health 
issues, and premature mortality. There is indirect evidence that creation of mixed land use 
reduces obesity and body mass index. 

All of these health impacts help to begin the shift towards healthier behaviours and a healthier 
population. 

76



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 9 

 
 

6.6 RCMP 

Along the development’s proposed north elevation, it appears that covered carport-style parking 
is planned for approx. five vehicles, in addition to "secure" bike racks. It is strongly recommended 
that mitigation measures be implemented to prevent this area from being used for inappropriate 
and/or criminal activities. 

6.7 FortisBC (Electric) 

There are primary distribution facilities along the subject site's west (neighbouring property) and 
north (laneway) property lines. There are also primary distribution facilities within McKay Avenue 
but do not extend along the subject site's frontage. The applicant is responsible for costs 
associated with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as well as the 
provision of appropriate land rights where required. Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no 
concerns with this circulation. 

In order to initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-4FORTIS (1-866-436-7847).  
It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be 
dealt with at that time, prior to construction.   

6.8 FortisBC (Gas) 

No comments received. 

6.9 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications’ interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.10 TELUS 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

 
Date of Application Received: February 21, 2014 

Advisory Planning Commission  September 1, 2009 

The above noted application was reviewed by the Advisory Planning Commission at the meeting 
of September 1, 2009 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Advisory Planning Commission support Official Community Plan Application No. 
OCP07-0032, for 560, 561, 582 & 583 McKay Avenue; Lots 12, 13, 14 & 15, Plan 3769, Section 
13, Twp. 25 & Sec. 18, Twp. 26, ODYD; to amend the Official Community Plan from Multiple 
Unit Residential (Medium Density) to Commercial in order to accommodate the proposed 
mixed use development, and 

THAT the Advisory Planning Commission support Rezoning Application No. Z07-0093, for 560, 
561, 582 & 583 McKay Avenue; Lots 12, 13, 14 & 15, Plan 3769, Section 13, Twp. 25 & Sec. 
18, Twp. 26, ODYD; to rezone the subject properties from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 
zone to the proposed C4 – Urban Centre Commercial in order to accommodate the proposed 
mixed use development. 

77



Z14-0008 & OCP14-0006 – Page 10 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     

Abigail Riley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director of Community Planning &  
Real Estate 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Maps ‘A’ & ‘B’ 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Floor Plans 
Conceptual Elevations 
Conceptual Landscape Plan 
KLOCNA letter, dated April 9, 2014 
Development Engineering Department Memorandums, dated March 10, 2014 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95


	Agenda
	3.1 2014 05 12 Report Z13-0016  984 Dehart .docx
	3.1 2014 05 12 Attachments Z13-0016 984 Dehart.pdf
	3.2 2014 05 26 Report Z14-0008_OCP14-0006.docx
	3.2 2014 05 26 Attachments Z14-0008 OCP14-0006.pdf

